
RSJV & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
ofSection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Indian Furniture Products Limited ('the 
Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting ('IFCoFR') of the Company as at that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financialcontrols 
based on internal control over financial reporting stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operatingeffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, 
including adherence tothe Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds anderrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
ofreliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'sIFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance withthe Standards on Auditing issued by theinstitute of Chartered Accountants of India 
('lCAI')and deemed to be prescribedunder Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
oflFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ('the 
Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the GuidanceNote require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit toobtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materialrespects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthelFCoFRand their 
operating effectiveness.Our audit of IFCoFRincludes obtaining anunderstanding of IFCoFR, assessing the 
risk that amaterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
ofintemal control based on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor'sjudgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financialstatements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's IFCoFR. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to providereasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation offinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accountingprinciples. A company's IFCoFR include those policiesand procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparationof financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and thatreceipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
withauthorisations of management and directorsof the company; and (3) provide reasonableassurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, ordisposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Indian 
Furniture Products Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2024(cont'd) 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

7. Because of the inherent limitations ofIFCoFR, includingthe possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatementsdue to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of theIFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may 
become inadequate because of changes inconditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and such internal fmancial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as of March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essentials components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For R SJ V & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 02881S 

S Venkateswara Rao 
Partner 
Membership No.: 027713 

UDIN:24027713BKCBLT5463 
Place: Chennai 
Date:2nd May 2024 



RSJV & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Indian Furniture Products 
Limitedfor the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Referred to in paragraph 14 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 
ofeven date) 

i. (a) i. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE"). 

ii. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPEby which all PPEare verified 
in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our opinion, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other 
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company as at 
the balance sheet date. 

(d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
revalued its PPE or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 
rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals during the year, except for goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks 
lying with third parties at the year end, written confirmations have been obtained by the 
management. No material discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventories 
were noticed on such verification. 

(b} The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, 
at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets.According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not required 
to file any quarterly returns or stock statements with financial institutions. The company as not been 
sanctioned any working capital facility from the Banks. 

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the 
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other 
parties during the year. The Company has made investment in mutual fund scheme during the year. 

a. The company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, 
or provided security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, paragraph No 3(iii) 
(a)(A), 3(iii) (a)(B) are not applicable. 

b. (i) The company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, or stood 
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year. 

(ii}ln our opinion, investment made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 
C ' • t L 
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c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given to Straight Curve 
Ideas Private Limited, the principal and interest is overdue as on 31st March 2024 

Amount 
Extent 

Name of Entity 
(in Crs) 

Due Date of Remarks, if any 
Delay 

The Company had originally 
given loan to SCIPL in 2010 to 
be repaid by 31-03-2010. 
However the Company entered 
into a Settlement agreement 
with Straight Curve Ideas Pvt 

Straight Curve 
Ltd and also received Rs 2 Crs 
during the F.Y 2022-23 and the 

Ideas Private 6.00 31/03/2023 365 
balance of Rs 8 Crs to be 

Limited (SCIPL) 
received by 31-3-2023. 
However this amount was not 
received by 31-03-2023. The 
Company has received 2 Crs 
during the F.Y 2023-2024. No 
interest income has been 
provided for. 

d. On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, consequent to the 
Settlement agreement entered into between the Company and Straight Curve Ideas Pvt Ltd., 
the loan is crystalised at Rs 10 Crs and payable by 31-03-2023. The Company has received Rs 
2 Crs during the year 2022-23 and Rs 2 Core received during the year 2023-24. 

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the 
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdue of 
existing loans given to the same part 

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
transactions covered under section 185 and 186 of the act in respect of guarantees given. Further, 

the company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 the Act in respect of loans 
granted, investments made and securities provided, as applicable 

v. In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable. 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 
section 148 of the Act in respect of Company's Product/ Services. Accordingly, the provision of clause 
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 



vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty 
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it with 
theappropriate authorities 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory 
dues in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 31st 

March 2024 on account disputes are given below: 

Name of the statute Amount Amount paid Period to which Forum where dispute is 
(~ in lacs) under Protest the amount pending 

(~ in lacs) relates 

The Finance Act, 1994 4.01 - January 2007 to Central Excise and Service 
December 2007 Tax Appellate Tribunal 

The Finance Act, 1994 2.48 - July 2008 to May Adjudicating Authority 
2009 

The Central Excise 3.50 - August 2005 to Adjudicating Authority 
Act, 1944 July 2006 

The Central Excise 0.15 - April 2006 to Central Excise and Service 
Act, 1944 December 2006 Tax Appellate Tribunal 

West Bengal Sales Tax 22.82 - 2003-04 Deputy Commissioner 
Act, 1954 (Appeals) 

Uttar Pradesh Sales 94.00 - 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner 
Tax Act, 1948 (Appeals) 

Uttar Pradesh Sales 6.16 6.16 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner 
Tax Act, 1948 (Appeals) 

Uttar Pradesh Sales 0.30 0.30 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner 
Tax Act, 1948 (Appeals) 

Uttar Pradesh Sales 103.80 - 2012-13 Appellate Authority 
Tax Act, 1948 

West Bengal- VAT 7.63 7.48 2003-04 West Bengal Sales Tax 
Act, 2002 Revision Board 

West Bengal- VAT 59.03 - 2004-05 West Bengal Sales Tax 
Act, 2002 Appellate Office 

West Bengal- VAT 11.52 - 2006-07 Joint Commissioner 
Act, 2002 

West Bengal- VAT 3.94 - 2009-10 West Bengal Sales Tax 
Act, 2002 Appellate Office 

Madhya Pradesh Vat 9.38 9.38 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner 
Act, 2002 (Appeals) 



Name of the statute Amount Amount paid Period to which Forum where dispute is 
(~ in lacs) under Protest the amount pending 

(~ in lacs) relates 

Kerala Value Added 3.24 0.81 2010-11 Deputy Commissioner 
Tax Act, 2003 (Appeals) 

Bihar Value Added 133.69 133.69 2014-15 Commercial Taxes Tribunal 
Tax Act, 2003 (Appeals) 

Andhra Pradesh Value 3.27 - 2015-16 AsstCommisioner 
Added Tax Act, 2005 

Goa Value Added Tax 1.31 - 2017-18 AsstCommisioner 
Act, 2005 

-
Labour Case 2.00 Additional Labour Court-

Chennai 

-
Goods and Service 18.92 2017-18 Appellate authority. 
Tax 

viii. In our opm1on and according to the information and explanations given to us there were no 
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ix. (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to 
financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority or any 
other lender 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans from bank during the year for the purposes for 
which they were obtained. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, funds raised on short term 
basis have, prima facie not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the company. 

(e) During the year, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures or subsidiaries 

(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its Joint 
ventures or associate companies or subsidiaries. 

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix}(f) of the order is not 
applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable . 

xi. (a) No fraud by the company and no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during 
the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditorsin Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower complaints 
received during the year by the Company. 



xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has anadequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company 
during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 

xvi. 

xvii. 

xviii. 

xix. 

(a) 

(b) 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and 
hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934 and hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) of the order is not applicable 

According to the information and explanation provided to us, the group to which the company 
belongs doesn't have more than one CIC. 

The Company has incurred a cash loss of INR 972.0llacs in the financial year 2023-24and INR 
1027.Glin the immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due 

xx. (a) The company is not covered under provisions of Section 135(1) if the act. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(xx)(a), (b) of the order is not applicable. 

xxi. The Company does not have any subsidiary and consolidated financial statements is not applicable 
to the Company. Accordingly paragraph No 3 (xxi) of the Act is not applicable 

For R SJ V & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 02881S 

/~k 
S Venkateswara Rao 
Partner 
Membership No.: 027713 

UDIN: 24027713BKCBLT5463 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 2na May 2024 



RSJV & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Indian Furniture Products Limited on 
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd) 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To 
The Members of 
Indian Furniture Products Limited 
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements oflndian Furniture Products Limited 
("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and thestatement of profit 
and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity andstatement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ("the Ind ASFinancial 
Statements"). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, except for the effects of the matter described in basis of qualified opinion section of our report the 
aforesaid Ind ASFinancial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified 
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 
2024, and its 'losses(financial performance including other comprehensive income), itschanges in 
equityand itscash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. Financial assets in Note 5(b) to the financial statements include f600 lacs (previous year: f800 lacs), 
representing inter-company deposit and interest thereon. recoverable from Straight Curve Ideas Private 
Limited ("SCIPL"). Based on factors described in Notes to the financial statements, the management is 
confident of recovery of the aforementioned receivables outstanding as at 31 March 2024. However, in 
view of the legal uncertainties involved and significant lapse of time, we believe that the chances of 
recovery of such amount are remote and the same should be impaired in accordance with expected credit 
loss principles of Ind AS 109. Had the Company followed the principles of Ind AS 109, other expenses and 
net loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 would have been higher by f 600 lacs (previous year: f800 
lacs), and the financial assets and the other equity would have been lower by such amounts. 

4. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind ASFinancial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (''ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of thelnd AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements. 
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Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

5. The Company'sBoard of Directors areresponsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Company's annual report but does not include the Ind AS 
Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinionon the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other informationand, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is 
obtained at the date of this auditor's report. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, 
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statementsthat give a true and fair view of 
thestate of affairs(Financial position),losses and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian accounting standards ("Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the Ind AS Financial Statementsthat give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

7. In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, the management isresponsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless themanagement either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

8. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statementsas a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements. 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system with reference to Ind AS Financial Statementsin place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by themanagement 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management'suse of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial 
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statementsof the current year and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 
A"a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

15. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
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a) we have sought and except for the effects of the matters prescribed in the basis of qualified 
opinion paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 

b) except for the effects of the matters prescribed in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph, in our 
opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

c) Thebalance sheet, thestatement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account 

d) Except for the effects of the matters prescribed in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph, in our 
opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind ASspecified under section 
133 of the Act; 

e) the matter described in paragraph 3 under the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our 
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company; 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 
202~ from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

g) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the 
Company as on 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 2nd May 2024 as per Annexure 
B; 

h) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid 
down under Section 197 of the Act 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as under: 

i. the Company, as detailed in note 30 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact 
of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2024; 

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024; 

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024: 

iv. (a) The management has represented to us that no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on suchaudit procedures, considered 
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reasonable and appropriate, adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice indicating that 
such representation contains any material misstatement. 

(b) The management has also represented to us that no funds have been received by the 
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. Based on such audit procedures,considered reasonable and appropriate, 
adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice indicating that such representation 
contains any material misstatement. 

(c )Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e ), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any misstatement. 

( d) The company has not declared any dividend during the year. 

(e) According to Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for 
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording 
audit trail ( edit log) facility , the company have complied with the proviso and the 
company's Accounting Software has a feature for recording an audit trial (edit log) that is 
non configurable and the same has been operational throughout the year for all 
transactions recorded in the software 

For RS JV &Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 02881S 

~~~ 
futeswara Rao 
Partner 
Membership No.: 027713 

UDIN: 24027713BKCBLT5463 
Place: Chennai 
Date:2nd May 2024 
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Indian Furniture Products limited 
CIN-U72200TN2000PLC089255 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All anwunts in < /11,:,;, unless stated ntherwise/ 

Notes For the year For the year ended 

ended 31 March 2023 

31 March 2024 

I Revenue 
Revenue from operations 

Other income 
Total Revenue (I) 

II EXPENSES 

20 
21 

Cost of raw materials and components consumed/Sold 22 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded 23 
Employee benefits expense 24 

Finance costs 25 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 
Other expenses 27 
Total expenses (II) 

III Loss before exceptional items and tax (1-11) 
IV Exceptional Items 
V Profit/ (Loss) before tax (HI) 

VI Tax expense: 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 

VII Profit/(Loss) for the year (III-IV> 

VIII Other Comprehensive loss 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 
Income tax effect 

Total other comprehensive loss 

XI Total comprehensive Profit/(Loss> for the year (V + VI) 

X Loss per share (in f) 
(1) Basic 
(2) Diluted 

Summary of material accounting polices 

The accompan~ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. 

28 

19 

32 

29 
29 

2.1 

For R SJ V & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 02881S 

/~~ 
t ? oim, 

Alok Banerjee 

Director S Venkateswara Rao 
Partner 
Membership No.: 027713 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 2nd May 2024 

DIN No. 01371033 
Place: Bangalore 

Company Secretary 
M NoA42570 

Pl.ace: Gurugram 

0.07 78.49 

589.90 528.12 
589.97 606.61 

0.11 0.22 

18.13 171.5] 

32.48 52.21 
1,436.97 1,192.19 

102.67 110.04 
74.28 218.10 

1,664.65 1,744.25 

(1,074.68) (1,137.64) 

118.01 
(1,192.68) (1,137.64) 

(4.49) (3.70) 
(1,188.19) (1,133.94) 

0.20 0.12 

(0.20) (0.12) 

(1,188.40) (1,134.06) 

(1.70) (1.62) 
(1.70) (1.62) 

ducts Limited 

~ 
Nishant Dalal 
Director 
DIN No. 08972330 
Place: Gurugram 

) ri /( r~ f)v 
Sandeep Kumar 
Chief Financial Officer 

PAN AMKPK2527L 

Place: Gurugram 



Indian Furniture Products limited 
CIN-U72200TN2000PLC089255 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024 
(All 11mo11nts in ( lacs, ,mless stated otlicrwi~J 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(bl [nvestment propert\' 
(c) Other intangible assets 
fdl Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Loans 
(iiil Other financial assets 

(e\ Other non-current assets 
(f} Non-current tax assets (net\ 

Cunent assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash eouivalents 
<iii) Bank balances other than (ii\ above 
<iv) Other financial assets 
(v) Investments 

(c) Other current assets 

Total assets 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(bl Other equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non-cunent liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 
(b) Provisions 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities(net) 

Cunent liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
-Total outstanding dues o( Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises 
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 

Total equitv and liabilities 

Summary of material accounting polk~s 

The aa:ompam ing notes c1re an intepral r art of the financial statements. 
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report ot even date. 

Notes 

3(al 
4 

3(bl 

S(al 
Sfbl 
Ski 
6 

8 
9 
lO 

5/cl 
5/dl 

6 

11 
12 

13 
18 
19 

14 
15 

16 
17 
18 

2.1 

Asat 
31 Mar2024 

306.26 
11,897.80 

600.00 
57.07 

187.53 
68.19 

13,116.85 

126.26 

1,975.02 
57.82 
.\4.82 

3.07 
38.26 
59.73 

2.304.97 

15,421.83 

7,009.95 
17,519.46) 

(509.51) 

7,646.16 
149.21 

2,289.10 
10,084.46 

4,99-1.89 

499.36 

127.24 
224.18 

1.21 

5,846.87 

15,421.83 

As at 
31 March 2023 

385.35 
11,922.93 

118.01 
800.00 

53.01 
185.38 
69.69 

13,534.37 

HS.00 

1,876.35 
56.01 
44.69 

2.32 
23.34 

157.00 

2304.71 

15,839.08 

7,009.95 

(6,331.06) 
678.89 

10,748.59 
148.86 

2,293.59 
13,191.04 

400.00 

681.83 

315.98 
570.36 

0.98 

1,969.15 

15 839.08 

For RS JV & Associates 
Chartered Accountants ducts Limited 
Firm's Registration No.: 02881S 

/~ _ AJok Banerjee 

s Venkateswara Rao Oc' Director 
Partner ('/ _ , DIN No. 01371033 

Membership No .. 027713 /• Place: B•;:ore ./ 

N.No:0288 • 1).. , \~ 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 2nd May 2024 

~~. 
Company Secretary 
M No A42570 

Place: Gurugram 

,>04-
Nishant Dalal 
Director 
DIN No. 08972330 

Place: Guru~ am , 

(~/ 
Sandeep Kumar 
Chief Financia l Officer 

PAN AMKPK2527L 

Place: Gurugrnm 



fndian Furniture Products Limited 
CIN-U72201TfN2000PLC089255 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 202-1 
(Alf Hll/1lltlltS in ( foes, Wlh.'S:- statol ,1th(Tll'i5d 

A Cash flows from operating a.cth·ities 
Loss before ta.Y 
Adjushnents to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows: 

Depreciation .ind dmortis.ition expense 

8.-il,:mrns \,·rillcn l1ff 

Interest income 

Unddimcd bal,mcas, pn,visions Jnd lidbilitics writt('n h.ick 

Fin.incc costs 
Loss cm s,1lc of FA 
Net Gdintm changes in Fi<1nncial Assd 

Shnrt Term C.iritill Gdin 
rrnvisi(ln for wJrrantics 
lmp,1irmcnt t1f inn1stmcnt 

Provision for d()ublful receivables 
Operating prnfit/(loss) before working capital changes 

Working capital adjustments: 
Movcll'IC'nt in inventorit.'S 

Movement in trade rcceiv.iblt.'5 
Movcln(!nt in loun.s and odv11nces 
Movement in other current .isscts 
Mn\'cmcnt in trade payJblcs 
Movcn~nt in other liabilities 
Movement in pnwisinns 
Cash generated from operations 
lnwml.;' tax paid 
Net cash flows h:om operating activities 

B Cash Hows from investing activities 

Redcmrtion of IC D 
Purch.l~/Salc t lf fin.loci.ti instruments 

Red.:-mption t)f / !nvestnlent in deposits {net) 
Purch.isc llf Fixed Asset 
rrocccds frnm s.ilc of Fixed Asset 
fntcrest received 
StiorfTcrmCapital Gain 

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 

C Cash flows from financing activities 
Procc-eds frnm/(rcpavmcnt of) short-term bt)rrowings (ni..""1) 

Rcp.:iymcnt t)f n<m-rurrcnt b(lrrowings 
Pro'--1..-eds l'cccivcd from n1in-currcnt borro\\'ings 
lntNcst oo:1id 

Net cash flows (used in)/ from finandng activities 

D Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 

Ca.sh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equhralents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents as al )'ear end 
C1sh in hsrnd 
O'M..'<]\.IL'S in hand 

Bdlances with scheduled bJnks 
• in l.7.1-rrcnt <1comnts 

- in dcp.1si t aca.,unts 

The accnmr dflving nntcs ure 11n intc1:t ill l1 .ut of the fin,mcial statc-mcnls. 

This is the C.ish Flmv St.itc~nt rcfC'rrcd to in (1ur report ,,f C'vcn date. 

For R S J V & Associates 
Chartered Acc11unt;:mts 

Firm's Rcgistr.ition No : 0288.15 

~~araRao.._ __ _ Alok Banerjee 

r.irtmr \l. 01371033 

For the year 

ended31 Ma.r 
2024 

(1,192.68) 

!02.67 

(5.55) 

(83.53) 

1,436.97 
0.91 

(1.08) 

(0.87) 

118.01 

374.83 

18.74 

(98.67) 

(0.75) 

95.12 

(98.94) 

(276.70) 

0.58 

14.21 
1.50 

15.71 

200.00 
(13.00) 

(4. 19) 

0.58 
4.511 

0.87 

188.84 

(400.00) 

(510.88) 
2,326.40 

(1,618.26) 

(202.74) 

1.81 

56.01 

57.82 

0.01 

57.81 

57.82 

For the year ended 

Director 

31 Mar 2023 

(1,137.641 

110.03 

2.00 

(29.84) 

(UI) 
1,192.19 

11.91 

0.11 

147.35 

171 .96 

(362.45) 

124.93 

0.54 

(102.13) 

3.07 

0.05 

(16.68) 
50.07 

33.39 

200.00 
(2.09) 

370.03 
(0.62) 
\.66 

24.29 

593.28 

(3,207.10) 
3,731.38 

(1,164.28) 

(640.01) 

(13.34) 

6935 

56.01 

0.26 

55.75 

56.01 

DIN No. 08972330 

Mem~rship r-.;'o.: 027713 : Bans.ilt 

'NAl-34. ~ 
~ 

Place: Chcnndi 
0,1tc: 2nd May 2024. 

ACCO 

any Scm:-tarv 
Ntl A42570 

Place: Curugram 

ar 
(Chid Financial OffiC('r) 
PA N AMKPK2527L 
Pl•ce: Gurugr.nn 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 
CJN-U72200TN2000PLC089255 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 202-l 
(Afl 11molmf~ in ,( lacs, unless stilled otherwise) 

(a) Equity share capital 

Equity shares off 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid 
(1) Current re L1ortin!l. ueriod 

Balance at the begi nning of the current Changes in Equity 

reporting period Share Capital due to 

prior period errors 

As at March 31, 2023 
No of Shares I Amount 

7,00,99,470 I 7,009.95 

m r rev10us ....,. .. ... .-h,l ll'"' " .,.: ,..,-1 n 
As at Man-h , 1 2022 

No of Shares I Amount 

1,00,99,.,70 I 7,009.95 

B. Other equity 

(1) Current re1,ortin i.:. neriod 
Particulars Share Equity 

application component 

money of 7% Redeemable 

pending convertible non-

allotment cumulative 

preference shares 

Balance at the beginning of 771.69 

the current reporting period (as 

at Aft ril 01 20231 
Profit/l loss 1 for the vear 
Other comprehensive in ... "Ome 

for the vea r 
Total comprehensive income 

for the vear 
An v other chan1-te: 
Securities premium proceeds 

received on issue of ~u ity 

sharPS 
Balance at the end of the m .69 

current reporting period (as at 

March 31 20241 

B. Other equity 
(2) Previous reporting period 

Particulars Share Equity 

application component 

money of 7% Redeemable 

pending convertible non-

allotment cumulative 

preference shares 

Balance at the beginning of m .69 

the current reporting period (as 

at A ,,.;1 01 20221 
Profit/(loss) for the vear 
Other comprehensive income 

for the vear 
Total comprehensive income 

for the \ ear 
An\' other chant e: 
Securities premium proceeds 

received on issue o f equity 

h~res 
Balance at the end of the 771.69 

current reporting period (as at 

M>=h 11 20231 

Restated balance Changes in equity Balance at the end of the 

at the beginning share capital current reporting period 

of the current during the current 

reporting period year 

As at March 31 2024 

No of Shares I Amount 

1,00,99.~70 I 7,009.95 

A, •• Ma.rh 11 2n01 
- No of Shares I Amount 

7,00,99.470 I 7,009.95 

Reserves and surplus Other Money Total 

Securities 
comprehensive received 

Other Reserves 
income against 

premium 
Remeasurement Retained Effective portion share 

reserve 
gain/(loss) on earnings of cash flow warrants 

defined benefit hedges 

plan 

53.33 (26.66) (7,129.42) (6,331.06) 

11,188.1 91 ll,188.191 

(0.20) (0.20) 

(0.20) (1,188.19) (l,18MO) 

53.33 (26.86) (8,317.61) (7,519.46) 

Reserves and surrtlus Other Money Total 

Securities Other Reserves comprehensive received 

premium income against 
reserve Remeasurement Retained Effective portion share 

gain/(loss) on earnings of cash flow warrants 

defined benefit hedges 

-····· 
53.33 (26.54) 15,9'!5.48) (5,197.00) 

(1,1 33.94) (1,133.94) 

(0.12) (0.12) 

(0.12) (1,133.94) (1,134.06) 

53,33 (26.66) (7,129.42) (6,331.06) 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 

31 March 2024 

1. Corporate information 

The financial statements of "Indian Furniture Products Limited" ("the Company" or "IFPL") are 

for the year ended 31 March 2024. Indian Furniture Products Limited ("the Company") is a public 

company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act 

applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at G-106 Sidco Industrial Estate, 

Kakkalur, Thiruvallur, Tamil Nadu - 602003 

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading Ready to Assemble Furniture (RTAF). The 

Company markets the product under the brand name of Style Spa and Zuari. 

The Company is a subsidiary of Zuari IndustriesLimited. Information on related party relationships 

of the Company is provided in Note 32. 

2. Application of Indian Accounting Standards 

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized 

(refer note 42) have been considered while preparing these financial statements. 

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies 

a. Basis of preparation 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standard ('Ind AS') and comply with requirements of Ind AS, stipulations contained in 
Schedule III (revised) as applicable under Section 133 of the Act, the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2021 as amended from time to time and other pronouncements/ provisions of 
applicable laws. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for certain financial 
assets and non-financial assets measured at fair value or net realisable value as applicable. 

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (~), which is also its 
functional currency and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been 
rounded off to the nearest lacs as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise 
stated. 

b. Basis of classification of current and non-current 

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non-current 

based upon the requirements of Schedule III notified under the Companies Act, 2013. 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 

31 March 2024 

An asset has been classified as current if 

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal 

operating cycle; or 

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or (c) it is expected to be realized within 

twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. All other assets have been classified as 

non-current. 

A liability has been classified as current when (a) it is expected to be settled in the Company's 

normal operating cycle; or 

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or 

(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting date. All other liabilities have been classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization 

in cash or cash equivalents. 

c. Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') 

PPE and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant 
and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria 
are met. 

Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving 
at the purchase price. The cost of an item of PPE shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if: 
a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and 
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the 
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All 
other expenses on existing assets, including day- to- day repair and maintenance expenditure and 
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which 
such expenses are incurred. Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. 
Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as a part of indirect 
construction cost to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is incidental thereto. 



Indian Furniture Products limited 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 

31 March 2024 

Other indirect costs incurred during-the construction periods which are not related to construction 
activity nor are incidental thereto are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Nature of tangible asset Useful life (years) 

Buildings 30 
Electrical installations 10 
Plant and machinery 10 - 15 
Furniture and fittings 10 
Office equipments 5 
Vehicles 8 

Computers 3-6 
Software 3 
Leasehold improvements 3 

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

d. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets in the nature of computer software are amortised over three years on a straight 

line basis based on management estimates. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 

amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 

reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the 

expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 

to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in 

accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another 

asset. 

e. Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the 

power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control 

or joint control over those policies. 

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the 

arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually 

agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant 

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 

31 March 2024 

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar 

to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries. Investment in joint ventures is 

measured at cost. 

f. Leases 

As inception of the Contract, the Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A 
lease is defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the 
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration' 

Classification of leases 
The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of 
ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to extend/purchase etc. 

Recognition and initial measurement 
At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on 
the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial 
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of 
any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments 
made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). 

Subsequent measurement 
The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such 
indicators exist. 

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the 
lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that 
rate is readily available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in 
the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed 
payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, 
the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to 
reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. 
When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of­
use asset. 

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the 
practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in 
relation to these are recognized as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 

31 March 2024 

g. Impairment of non-financial assets 

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash­
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. 
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination 
of a suitable discount rate. 

h. Foreign currency transactions and translations 

Functional and presentation currency 
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also it's functional currency. 

Initial Recognition 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 

currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the 

date of the transaction. 

Conversion 

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting 

date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary 

items measured at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange 

rates that existed when the fair value was determined. 

Exchange differences 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's 

monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, 

or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in 

which they arise. 

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in 

line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 

differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also 

recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

i. Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in 
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 

31 March 2024 

measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence 
in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the entity. 

j. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, 
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when 
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre­
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
Warranty Provision 

The company estimates the liability for the purposes of recognising and measuring the provisions 

for warranty obligations, in relation to repair or replace the items that fail to perform satisfactorily 

during the warranty period. Warranty provisions are recognised when the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the goods are sold or service is provided. In order to determine the level of provision, 

various factors are taken into consideration, including estimations based on past experience with 

the nature and amount of claims, technical evaluations etc. These estimations also involve assessing 

the future level of potential repair costs other factors. Provisions for warranties are adjusted 

regularly to take account of new circumstances and the impact of any changes recognised in the 

income statement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre -

tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 

the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. No 

reimbursements are expected. 

k. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and 

excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, if any. The Company recognizes revenue 

when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. 

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process: 

1. Identifying the contract with a customer 
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2. Identifying the performance obligations 

3. Determining the transaction price 

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations 

5. Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied. 

Identifying the performance obligations 

Under Ind AS 115, the Company must evaluate the separability of the promised goods or services 

based on whether they a re 'distinct'. A promised good or service is 'distinct' if both: 

• the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available 

resources, and 

• it is 'separately identifiable' (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service 

integrating, modifying or customizing it) 

Determining the transaction price 

Under Ind AS 115, the Company shall consider the terms of the contract and its customary business 

practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price excludes amounts collected on 

behalf of third parties. The consideration promised include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or 

both. 

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds 

directly with the value to the customer of the performance completed to date, the Company 

recognizes revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice. 

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations 

The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis 

of their standalone selling price (in case of storage and distribution contracts where the customer 

pays a fixed rate per item for all the services provided). For services that are not provided 

separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment approach. 

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being 

made. 

/ 
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The company recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer. 

The company recognises revenue from the following major sources:-

Sale of goods: 

Revenue from sale of goods is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a 

customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. It is measured at fair value 

consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume 

rebates. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product i.e. when goods 

are delivered at the delivery point (as per terms of the agreement). 

Rendering of Services: 

According to Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised over time (percentage of completion) either when 

the performance creates an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created (e.g. work in 

progress) or when the performance creates an asset with no alternative use and an enforceable right 

to payment as performance is completed to date has been secured. Revenue is also recognised over 

time if the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits from goods and services 

as performed. 

Customers are invoiced periodically (generally on monthly basis). Income in respect of service 

contracts are recognised in statement of profit and loss when control of respective service has been 

transferred to customer, which is done over time in case of Indian Furniture Products Limited. 

Other items of revenue 

Interest income: Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 

outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head "other 

income" in the statement of profit and loss. 

I. Inventories 

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs 

incurred in bringing the inventories at their present location and condition. Inventories are valued 

at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

The cost of various categories of various inventories are determined as follows: 

(a) Stores and spares, raw materials and packing materials: at moving weighted average basis. 

(b) Work in progress and finished goods: Cost includes direct materials and labour and a 

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

I 
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(c) Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a moving weighted average 

basis. 

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost include cost of purchase 

and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is 

determined on a weighted average basis. 

Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below 

cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above 

cost. 

Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

m. Income Tax 

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and 
current tax except the ones recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is 
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items 
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity). 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on 
the Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and 
expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 

year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items 

recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit or Loss 

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 

n. Retirement and other employee benefits 

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are 

classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are 
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recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the 

related service. 

Provident Fund: 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company 

has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company 

recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee 

renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the 

balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is 

recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already 

paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is 

recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in 

future payment or a cash refund. 

Gratuity: 

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan 
is determined using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises termination benefit 
as a liability and an expense when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, 
it is probable that ari outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination 
benefits fall due more than twelve months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present 
value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the 
balance sheet date on government bonds. 

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised 
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through 
OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense 
in the Statement of profit and loss: 

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on 
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and 
Net interest expense or income 

Leave encashment: 

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as 
long-term employee benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the 
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projected unit credit method at the period end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current 
liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its 
settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal 
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond twelve months, the balance is 
presented as a non-current liability. 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as 
short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the 
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated 
at the reporting date. 

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. 

o. Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to 
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs, if any, directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized, if any. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. 

p. Investments 

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are 
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current investments. 
All investments are carried at fair value. 

q. Dividend 

Dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it is approved by the shareholders in the 
general meeting. 

r. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

I 
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of 
the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

s. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition 

of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 

are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets 

within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way 

trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell 

the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

a) Debt instruments at amortised cost 

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
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c) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL) 

d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A' debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 

contractual cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment 

are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 

Debt instrument at FVTOCI 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and 

selling the financial assets, and 

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 

reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive 

income (OCI). However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals 

and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss 

previously recognised in OC:I is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding 

FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

Equity investments 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 

are held for trading. 

For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election on 

an instrument by - instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is 

irrevocable. 
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes 

on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the 

amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the 

cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 

recognised in the P&L. 

De-recognition 

A financial asset ( or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when: 

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 

'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the 

risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 

a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards 

of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 

of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred 

asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 

recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on 

a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 

that the company could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk 

exposure: 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL 
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The Company follows' simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit 

risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, 

right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 

recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for 

impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a 

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising 

impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the 

expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which 

results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 

and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 

including financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading 

and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
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Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 

repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 

into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 

defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading 

unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 

designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are 

satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own 

credit risks are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to statement 

of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The 

Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

De-recognition 

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability 

and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 

recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a 

non-derivative host contract - with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined 

instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some 

or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according 

to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, 

index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a 

nonfinancial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only 

occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash 

flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value 

through profit or loss. 

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the 

Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification 

requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all 
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other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their 

economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host 

contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded 

derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless 

designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Derivative financial instrument 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge 

its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value 

on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair 

value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial 

liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit 

or loss. 

t. Derivative financial instruments - Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign 

currency risk of an existing asset/ liability 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge 

its foreign currency risks. Such derivative contracts are marked to market on portfolio basis, and 

the net loss/ gain, is charged to the Statement of profit and loss. 

u. Derivative instruments - Forward contract for firm commitment 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

Derivative contracts entered for firm commitment, are marked to market on portfolio basis, and the 

net loss/ gain is charged/credited to the Statement of profit and loss. 
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v. Segment reporting policies 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 

the chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 

performance of the operating segments. 

w. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on 
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and 
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above. 

x. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year 

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 

the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

y. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

z. Key sources of estimations 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management 

of the company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and 

expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to 

contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying 

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful 

lives of property, plant and equipment, Intangible assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, 

future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, expected cost of completion of contracts, 

provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual 

results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known. 
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aa. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based 
on management's experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, 
estimates and assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they 
impact the various accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the 
financial statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. 

i) Judgements 
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the management has made the 
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements: 

a) Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against 
the Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, 
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. 
The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the 
exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. 

b) Recognition of deferred tax 
The extent to which deferred tax asset to be recognised is based on the assessment of the probability 
of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized. 

ii) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to 
market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 

31 March 2024 

a) Useful lives of depreciable assets 
The Company reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, 
based on the expected utility of the assets. 

b) Defined benefit obligation 
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of 
such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making 
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the 
determination of the discount rate, future trends salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. In view of the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a 
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date. 

c) Inventories 
The Company estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most 
reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may 
be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling 
prices. Further, the Company also estimate expected loss due to shrinkage, pilferage etc. along with 
NRV impact on old inventory taking into account most reliable information available at the 
reporting date. 

d) Impairment of assets 
In assessing impairment, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash­
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. 
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination 
of a suitable discount rate. 

e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot 
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair 
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial 
instruments. 

f) Rounding of amounts 
All amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
lakhs as per the requirement of schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 
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CJN.U,220l1TN2000PLC0892SS 
S■mm:ny of m.1.terial a"°u.nting po lid ts .11nd other explanatory infonra;ation for the yt:i.t ended SIii M.11rc:b 2.024 
(All nmouuts i,r ( lacs, w1b~ :.hlttd othtrw~ 

S(a) : Property, plant and equipment 
Partic:uhi.rs t.ind Building PL111tand Computers lumitllrtand Office Lu■ehold Elcc:tric.:i.l Vehicle■ To~I 

madUnery fillturn equipmitnl improveD1ents installations 

As al 1 April 2022: 928.60 10.2.1 112.Dl 53.56 35.H &.62 1,14U.6 
Additions 0.62 0.62 
Disposals 47.lJ2 8.56 77 33Jl4 21 187.18 

As at 31st Match 202! 881.SS 2..29 35.<3 19.72 13.% 4.62 951.60 

As at 1 April 2023 8111.58 2..29 35.'3 19.72 13.96 4.62 957.60 
Additions 
Disposals 12.70 0.38 5.15 5.62 0.94 24.79 
As at 3:hl March 2024 868.87 1.91 30.28 14.10 13.03 4.62 93%.lll 

Accumul.t,litd amortisation 

Aa at 1 Aptil Z022 493.92 6.01 81.61 41.41 29.32 3.96 661.2, 
Charge for the year 76.24 0.18 7.15 0.35 0.98 84.90 
Disposals 45.31 5.61 69.D6 31.58 22 17!.8'l 

As at 31st March 2023 529.85 o.ss 19.70 10,18 7.97 3.% 572.25 

As at 1 April Z023 529.85 0.58 19.70 10.18 1.91 3.96 572..25 
Charge for the year 71,06 0.21 5.30 0.21 0.76 77.54 
o.,.,_i, 12.01 .... 4.63 5.38 0~ 23.2.1 
Mat 311t M.Jrth 2021. 588.90 0.44 20.37 5.01 7.87 3.% 626.55 

~rrying amou.nt (Ad) 

As 1:1t 311t March 2023 351.72 1.71 15.73 9.54 5.99 0.66 385.35 

A'fjilt31stMarc:h2021 279.97 1.47 !>.91 9.D9 5.16 0.66 306.26 

Note J{a)(i): On 111 January 2017, the Company had entered into joint venturi! agreement with Fabrykl"Mebli Forte S.A., Poland whereby it had been agreed by the Company to transfer by way lease land, 
building and plant and machinary to Forte Furniture Products India Privat-: Limited (the joint venture oomp,my) with effect from 1 April 2017 and all the products will be manufactured and sold by the 

joint venture company. 

Not"' 3(a)(il) : From 1 April 2017, land and h\lilding covered under the lease arm<1gcment have been transkred to investment property. 

Note J(a){iii) ; As on the transition date 01 Aprii 2015, the Company has adopted the fair value- of the land based on an independent valuation report. 

Note J(a)(iv) : n.c Company has not revalued any of Its property, pl.ililt and equipment during the ~d ended M.:irch 31, 2024 and year ended March 3-1 , 2023-. Hence, the amount of di.ange, in gross and 
net carrying amount due to revaluation and impairment loSM.'1/reversals is nil. 

Note 3(a)(v) : The Comp;iny does not have any Co1pita.l Work in Progress or intan~ible Asset under development, hence the disdoures are not appl!cable 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amounts in ( lacs, unless stated otherwise) 

3(b) : Other intangible assets 
Particulars 

Cost or Deemed Cost 
As at 1 April 2022 
Additi ons 
Deletion 

As at 31st March 2023 

As at 1 April 2023 
Additions 

Deletion 
As at 31st March 2024 

Accumulated amortisation 
As at 1 April 2022 
Additi ons 
Deletion 

As at 31st March 2023 

As at 1 April 2023 

Add itions 
Deletion 

As at 31st March 2024 

Carrying amount (net) 

As at 31st March 2023 

As at 31st March 2024 

(This space is in le11ti<111ally left blank) 

Software 

42.58 

42.58 

42.58 

42.58 

42.58 

42.58 

42.58 

42.58 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(Alf ,,11101111t::: hr ( foe:::, HIiie-:.., :.-t,tft•cl otht!1-;1•i:-.!I 

4. In vestment property 

The i:hJnges in the currying \·,1lue of investment properties Me as follows: 

Gross block 
As at 1 April 2022 
.-\ddit ions 

Del~tions 

As at 31st March 2023 

As at 1 April 2023 
Additions 

Deletions 
As at 31st March 2024 

Depreciation 

As at 1 April 2022 
Additions 

Deletions 

As at 31st March 2023 

As at 1 April 2023 

.Additions 

Deletions 

As at 31st March 2024 

Net block 
As at 31 Much 2023 

As at 31st March 2024 

(i) Amount recognised in statement of profit and Joss for invesbnent properties 

Particulars 

RentJI income# 

Dire-.:t operu.ting expenses from property {including repJirs i:lnd mJ.inten.in~e) that genemting renl,1I 

income 
Dira:t o~rJting expense from property that did not genernted rental income 

Profit from invesbnent property before depreciation 
Depredation 

Profit arising from investment properties 

For the year ended 

31st March 2024 

444.83 

444.83 

(25.13) 
419.69 

Asat 
31-Mar-24 

12,161.80 

12,161.80 

12,161.80 

12,161.80 

213.74 

25.13 

238.87 

238.87 

25.13 

264.00 

11,922.93 

11,897.80 

For the year 

ended 

31st Much 2023 

444.83 

444.83 
(25.13) 
419.69 

#Rent.ii inrnme recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises of f+H.83 lacs in respect of rentc1I income from investment property Jnd 

N9.83 lat.::s in respect of pl,mt ilnd m rchinery respectively. 

(ii) Fair value 

Particulars 

F.1ir value 

Fair value hierarchy and valuation technique 

As at As at 

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023 
12.124.04 12.124.04 

a The Company obtc1ins independent vJ!u,1tions for its investment properties tlt le,1st anm1dlly. The best evidence of foir vJ.lue is i.:urrent prices in an 

.ictive mdrket for similM properties. Where such informJtion is not .:availdble, the rnmpdny considers informdtion from J vciriety of sources 

indudine. • 
I. Current prices in J.n ..ictive market of properties of different n.iture or recent pri,es of simil.ir properties in less .:ictive market .:idjusted to reflect 

those differences. 

2. Disi:ounted cu.sh flow projections b,1sed on relit1ble estim.1tes of future c,1sh tlows. 
3. C.1pitc1lised income projections b<1sed upon u property's estimt1ted nel m11rket i.ncome, Jnd c1 c~1pit,1lis.:ition r.ite derived from .in ,m.ilysis of 

m.irkel evidence. 

The mi.1in inputs used .are the rent<1l growth r,1tes, expet.::tcd vac.:ancy rntes, terminal yields and discount rJtes b.ised on compiir,1ble truns<1ctions ,md 

in1.:ll1stry dt1tJ. All the resulting foir value estimJtes for investment properties are induded in level 3. 

These va]utltions Me based on v.:ilu<1tions performed by S V Kushte, tm ,Kcredlted independent valuer. ~tr. Kushte is .:a speciulist in v.:iluing these 

types of investment properties. A vuluation model in JCCord,mce with that r~ommended by the lntem..ition..il V<llu.ition St,mdJrds Committee has 

been iipplied. 

The Comp.my has no restrictions on the realis.Jbi !ity of its investment properties omd no contrnctu.il oblig,1tions to purchJse, wnstn1ct or develop 

investment properties or for repJirs, m,:1inten,mce Jnd enh.1.ncements. 

b. No proceedings h.ive been initiJted or pending t1g,1inst the Company under the Bendmi TwnsJctions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 .it end of Fincin,i.il 

ye;.1r 

cThe Title deeds of Properties Jre held in the name of the Compt1ny 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amcmnts in, lacs, 1111/ess Mated otherwise) 
5. Financial assets 

5 (al. Investments 

Investments in unquoted equity instruments (fully paid-up) 

Measured at cost 
Investments in others 
Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited 
6,23,032 shares@' Rs 17 ~r Share and 88,907 shares @ 13.60 per shares(31 March 2023: 6,23,032 

shares@ Rs 17 per Share and 88,907 shares @ 13.60 per shares) 

Less Impairment in value of investments in FFPL (refer Note no 28) 

Aggregate Cost of unquoted investments 
Fair value of unquoted investments 
Gain/(Loss) in fair value of assets 

Investments carried at Amortised cost 
Investments carried at FVTPL 
Investments carried at FVTOCI 

5(b). Loans 

Loans 

Inter corporate deposits 
To related party 
To others 

Impairment allowance 

Breakup of loans 
Loans considered good- Secured 
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk 

S(d, Other financial assets 

Interest accrued but not due on deposits 
Security deposits 

5 (d), Investments 

Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss 

account 
Investment in Mutual Fund 
(Baroda BNP Paribas Mutual Fund - 1388.819 Units '1!' Rs 

2754.61) 

Aggregate Cost of quoted investments 
Market value of quoted investments 
Gain/(Loss) in fair value of assets 

Investments carried at FVTPL 
Investments carried at FVTOCI 

Non Current 
As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

0.21 
56.86 53.01 

57.07 53.01 

As at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

118.01 118.01 

jll8.0l t 

118.01 

118.01 

Non current 
As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

725.00 925.00 

(125.00) (125.00) 
600.00 800.00 

600 800 

Current 
As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

3.07 2.32 

3.07 2.32 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

38.26 23.34 

38.26 23.34 

33.00 20.00 
38.26 23.34 
5.26 3.34 

38.26 23.34 

,,,,. 
/ ... { f ' 

_,.,,. 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amounts in< lacs, unless stnted otherwise) 

6. Other non-current assets Non-current Current 

Deposits against disputed demands 
Balance with statutory authorities 
Advances to vendors 
Prepaid expenses 

7. Inventories 

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Raw materials 
Finished goods 
Traded goods 
Stores and spares 
Packing materials 

As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

187.53 185.38 

187.53 185.38 

Asal 

31 March 2024 

26.96 
32.70 
0.06 

59.73 

Asal 

31 March 2024 

9.44 
97.13 
1968 

126.26 

Asat 

31 March 2023 

26.97 
129.94 

0.09 

157.00 

As at 

31 March 2023 

0.11 
24.84 
99.86 
19.68 
0.50 

145.00 

During the year the Company has written off inventories to the extent of 17.00 lacs based on the net realisable value( Previous year 

ended 31st Mar 2023 wirte off of Rs 30.03 lacs) 

(This space is intentional/If left blank) 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amounts in ( tars, Hnl~ss stated otherwise) 

8. Trade receivables 

Receivables from related parties 
Receivables from other parties 

Break-up of security details: 
Trade receivables considered good- Unsecured 

Trade receivables - credit impaired 
Total 

Loss allowance 

Net total 

As at 31st March 2023 

Particulars 

(ii Lndisputed Trade receivables considered )\ood 

(l1) Undis puted Trade Receivables considered doubtful 

1h11 Dis puted Trade Receivables considered ~ood 
1iv) Dis!'uted Trade Receivables considered doubtful 

As at 31st March 2024 

Particulars 

l(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered i,:ood 

tii) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered ,tood 

(iv) Dis1m ted Trade Receivables considered doubtful 
•• There is no unbilled dues as on 31.03.2024 ( As on 31.03.2023- Nil) 

9. Cash and cash equivalents 

a. Balances with banks 
- On current accounts 

b. Cash on hand 

10. Other bank balances 

Balances with banks: 
Margin money deposits* 
Fixed deposits 

As at 

31 March 2024 

1,854.92 

120.10 

1,975.02 

1,975.02 

1,089.24 

3,064.26 
(1,089.24) 

1,975.02 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment# 

More 
Less than More than 3 

6months 
than6 1-2 years 2-3 years 

Months 
years 

271.14 271.14 538.32 574.94 319.48 

1,089.24 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment# 

More 
Less than More than 3 

6 months 
than6 1-2 years 2-3 years 

Months 
years 

269.45 268.87 622.65 458.01 257.38 

1,089.24 

As at 

31 March 2024 

57.81 
0.01 

57.82 

As at 

31 March 2024 

28.70 

16.12 

44.82 

Asat 

31 March 2023 

1,756.02 

120.33 

1,876.35 

1,876.35 

1,089.24 

2,965.59 
(1,089.24) 

1,876.35 

Total 

1,975.02 

1,089.24 

Total 

1,876.35 

1,089.24 

Asat 

31 March 2023 

55.75 
0.26 

56.01 

As at 

31 March 2023 

27.92 

16.77 

44.69 

*Margin money deposit with carrying amount of t28.70 lacs (31 March 2023 t27.92 lacs) are subject to first charge for the Bank guarantee optained by 

the Company. 

.~ 
,> ll 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(Ali 1mzt11mts in ( Illes, 1rnh-ss Mated otherw;se) 

11. Share capital 

Authorised share capital 

As at 1 April 2022 
lncrease/(decrease) during the year 
As at 31 March 2023 
Increase/(decrease) during the year 
As at 31 March 2024 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up: 

70,099,470 (31st March 2022: 70,099,470) equity shares of fl 0/- each fully paid 

Equity Shares of no each 

Number of 

shares 

7,26,00,000 

7,26,00,000 

7,26,00,000 

Amount 

7,260.00 

7,260.00 

7,260.00 

a) Reconciliation of e~uih shares outstandin~ al the bel!innin~ and at the end of the rePOrtinll. period 
As at 31 March 2024 

Number of Amount 

shares 
At the beginning of the year 7,00,99,470 7,009.95 
Issued during the year -

Outslandinl! at the end of the vear 7,00,99,470 7,009.95 

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

7% Redeemable Convertible non­

cumulative Preference Shares of 

nooeach 

Number of Amount 

shares 

11,30,220 1,130.22 

11 ,30,220 1,130.22 

11,30,220 1,130.22 

Asal As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

7,009.95 7,009.95 

7,009.95 7,009.95 

As at 31 March 2023 

Number of Amount 

shares 
7,00,99,470 7,009.95 

-
7,00,99,470 7,009.95 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of tlO per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.The 

Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders 

in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 

shareholders. 

c. Terms of conversion/ redemption of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares 
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 1,000,000 redeemable convertible non-<:umulative preference shares of ~100 each fully paid­

up per share. Redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares carry cumulative dividend @ 7% p.a. The Company declares and pays 

dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. Each holder of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed 

before the Company which directly affect U1e rights attached to redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares. 

If redeemable convertible non-<:umulative preference share holders do not exercise conversion option, all preference shares are redeemable at par at the 

end of 12th year from the date of issue. In the event of liquidation of the Company before co,wersion/ redemption of redeemable convertible non­

cumulative preference shares, the holders of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the 
n;ivmf:)nt of divirlPnd ;md rPmwmPnt nf rrmitrtl. 

d Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of e4uil y shares in the Compan\ 
Name of Shareholder As al 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Number of %Holding Number of %Holding 

shares shares 
E<1 uit1 shares of no each full \' 11aid ur, 
Zuari Industries Limited 5,07,85,714 72.45% 5,07,85, 714 72.45% 
Zuari International Limited 70,44,643 10.05% 70,44,643 10.05% 
Adventz Investment Compan\ Private Limited 70,71,429 10.09% 70,71,429 10.09% 

Others 51,97,684 7.41 % 51,97,684 7.41% 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial 

interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

e Details of Share held b1 Promoters at the end of the , ear 
Name of the Promoters As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Number of ., 
, O % of Change Number of %Holding 'Yo of Change 

shares Holding during the shares during the year 

year 

Zuari Industries Limited 5,07,85,714 72.451¾, 5,07,85,714 72.45% -

L 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All ,mw1mfs in ( /Hes, unless stntcd otln'n.t 1isc) 

12. Other equity 

Securities premium 
Equity component of convertible pTeference shares of noo each (issued and fully paid) 

(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss: 
B,1 lani.::e ,1s per 101st fin,mci.:il st,1tements 
Net Profit/{loss )for the ve,1r 

Retained earnings 

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve 

Securities premium 

Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

53.33 53.33 

m.69 771.69 

(7,156.08) (6,022.02) 

(1,188.40) (1,134.06) 

(8,344.48) (7,156.08) 

(7,519.46) (6 331.06) 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The se1..·utities premium will be utilised in ..1ccord,mce with provisions of the Act 

Equity component of convertible preference shares of noo each (issued and fully paid) 
This reserve contains equity portion of compound instrument issued by the Company in the form of convertible preferen1.."€ sh,1res 

Retained earnings 
Retc1ined earnings are created from the profit/ tJoss) of the Comp,my 

13. Borrowings- Non-current 

(Measured at amortised cost) 

From others 
Secured borrowings 

Term lo,ms from Non-Banking Finc1ncial Companies (refer note (i)j 

Unsecured borrowings 
Inter Corporc1te Deposits [refer note (ii)I 

Liability component of compound financial instrument 
Redeem<1ble Preference Sh,c1res (unsecured) (refer note (iii)] 
Sub-total 

Less: Current maturities of long tern borrowings disclosed in Other 

fimmci,11 liabilities (Refer Note 14) 

i) Secured borrowings 

Non-current 

Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

4,640.07 

7,02-l.14 5,558.62 

7,024.14 10,198.70 

622.0\ 549.89 

622.01 549.89 

7646.16 10 748.59 

Terms and conditions of borrowings obtJined from Non-Banking Fino:1ndc1I Corporo:1tions are ,1s follows: 

Current maturities 
Asat As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

4,994.89 

4,994.89 

(4,994.89) 

1) The term loan facility of;?: 5000 lacs (31st M,u 2023 - ~ 4650 LJcs) taken from M/s Baj.:ij Finunce Limited {BFL) c..1rries an o:1nnual interest <1t floc1ting rc1te of 

9.75% p.a. linked to BFL base rc1te. It is repayable Jt the end of Tenure i.e 36 months. The term lo,rn is senired by w,1y of:-

1. Pledge of Equity Sh,1res of Chc1mb,1I Fertilizers & Chemicals Ltd 

2. Security Provided by Zuc1ri Industries Limited. 

3. Ou.ring the period Interest rnte w..1s r..1nge from from 9.75% to 9.95% 

-t. The outstanding book bc1lance c1s on 31st M,m.:h 2024 is f 4994.89 l<1cs (31 March 2023 -4640.07). 

ii) Unsecured borrowings 

1) The CompJny has taken Inter Corpor..1te Deposit (ICD) from Zuari [ndustries Limited cJrrying an interest rate of 15.00''fo. The outstanding book balant.:e dS on 

31st Mar 2024 is t 3169.83 (31 March 2023 - ~2699.70 lac,). 

2) The Company hc1s taken Inter Corpor<1te Deposit ([CD) from Zuarin lntern<1tion<1l Limited cc1rrying iln interest rate of 12.sou,;,, The outstJnding book b.-ilance ,1s 

on 31st ~1,1rch 2024 is t 3854.32 l<1t.:s(31st ~1drch 2023- t2858.92 l,Ks) 

iii) Terms of conversion/ redemption of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares 
During the year ended t\.f,uch 31, 2016, the Company issued 1,000,000 Redeemc1ble convertible non-cumul.1tive preference shares of Rs. 100 e,1eh fully p.1id-up per 

sh<1re. Redeem,1ble convertible non-cumulative preference sh.1res carry cumulc1tive dividend (1i) 7% p . .1. The CompJny decl.1res ,md p.1ys dividends in [ndian 

rupees. The dividend proposed by the Bourd of Directors is subject to the .1pproval of the shareholders in the ensuing Anmwl Gener.ii t\.leeting. E,1eh holder of 

redeem,1ble convertible non-rnmulative preference shJres is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the company which directly .iffect 

the rights attached to redeem.ible convertible non-cumul,1tive preference shc1res. 

If redeemable convertible non-nunul,1tive preference shc1re holders do not exercise conversion option, ,111 preferenL"€ shares dre redeemable dt par .tt the end of 

12th year from the dJte of iss1.1e. [n the event of liquid,1tion of the company before conversion/ redemption of redeem..1ble convertible non-cumulative preference 

sh<1res, the holders of redeemable convertible non-cumul,1tive preference shc1res will have priority over equity shares in the p<1yment of dividend and repayment 

of capital. 

I ' I 
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CIN-U72200TN2000PLC089255 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(Al/ 1mw1mt~ in ( hies, unless st,,te,i ~1thi•r1.11isi_•) 

13.1 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows: 
Particular 

A) Non-current borrowings (including cunent maturities) 

As at 31 March 2022 

Cash adjustment 
- Proceeds re~eived 
- Repayments# 

N on~cash adjustment 
- Interest recorded on preference shures 
- Amortis,1tion of transuction cost 
- [CD converted from Cmrent to Non Current Borrowings 
As at 31 March 2023 

As at 31 March 2023 

Cash adjustment 
- rroceeds received 
- Repuyments# 

Non-cash adjustment 
- Interest recorded on preference sh,ues 
- Amortisation of trans.Jction cost 
- Unamortis~1tion of tr,ms,1etion cost 

- TCD converted from Current to Non Current Borrowings 
As at 31st March 2024 

# fn c.:ise of cL1rrent borrowings, represents proceeds re1..~ived/(repJyments) of short-term borrowings (net) 

B) Finance cost activity 

As at 31 March 2022 
Fin,mce cost incurred during the period 
Finance cost paid 
As at 31 March 2023 

As at 31 March 2023 
Findnce cost incurred during the period 
Fin~mce cost p.iid 
As at 31 Mar 2024 

Non-current 

borrowings 
(including 

current 

maturities) 

10,155.77 

3,731.38 
(3,207.10) 

63.52 
5.03 

10,748.59 

10,748.59 

2,326.-10 
(510.88) 

72.12 
-1.82 

12,641.05 

Current 

borrowings 

400,00 

400.00 

400.00 

(-100.00) 

0.00 

Finance cost 
Activity 

191.31 
1192.19 

(1,164.28) 
219.21 

219.21 
1,436.97 

(1,618.26) 
37.93 

t 
) 

-
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CIN-U72200TN2000PLC089255 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(Al/ imw11nfs in? files. 1111/es::, ::;tilted other;:i•i::,cJ 

14. Borrowings - current Asat Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
(Measured at amortised cost) 

From others 
Unsecured loans 

Tnter corpor<1te deposits [refer note (i)I 
'Current m.iturities of long term borrowings (refer note 13) 

i) Inter-company deposits taken from others: 

-100.00 
-1,9!J.l.89 
4,994.89 400.00 

1) The Comp<1ny h.:is tJken lnter Corpor,1te Deposit (fCD) from ~-1/s/ Duke Commerce Limited. During the yeJr the Company h,1s rep,1id the ICD .1long with 

outstanding interest.The outstanding book balance as on 31st \fdr 2024 is Nil (3l t\larch 2023- ;?400 lacs). 

15. Trade payables 

(Measured at amortised cost) 

A. Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 

Discloswe under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act'): 

i) the princip,11 .1mount rem.ining unp...-iid to any supplier as at the end of e<.1ch accounting yeJr. 

ii) the amount of interest pt1id by the buyer in terms of section 16, ,1long with 

the umounts of the p<1yment made to the supplier beyond the ,1ppointed day 

during eoich accouting ye<.1r 

iii) the ,1mount of interest due ,md pJyJble for the period of delc1y in mJking 

payment (which h,ive been paid but beyond the Jppointed d<.1y during the 

yer.1r) but without Jdding the interest specified under the ~tSMED Act, 2006. 

iv) the ,1molmt of interest ,Kerned .ind remaining unp,1id Jt the end of e...-ich 

.1r.:countin~ ve.ir; ,md 

v) the amount of further interest remJining due .md po1y<1ble even in the 

sucr.:eeeding year, until such date when the interest dues dS Jbove ...-ire <1ctu..11ly 

paid to the sm..111 enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 

expenditure under section 23 of the rvtS1'lED Ad, 2006. 

Asat Asat 

31 MarC'h 2024 .11 M,u"h 202.1 

The .:ibove informJtion rego1rding dues to micro, srndll .llld medium enterpr.ises as defined under the Micro, Small .ind Medium Enterprises Development A.ct 

(MS~-lED), 2006 h.is been determined to the extent identified ,md inform,1tion available with the Comp,my pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small ,.md 

~.fedium Enterprises Development Act (MS~lED), 2006. 

B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 

Trnde pJy...-ibles -!99.36 681.83 

499.36 681.83 

As at 31st Mar 2024 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment# 
Particulars 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

li f MSME 

(ii)Othcrs 17.52 10.-1,1 5.76 -l,65.66 

(iii) Disri utcd dm.•s- \15ME 

(iv) Disr1 utcd dues- Others 

As at 31st Mar 2023 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment# 

Particulars 
less than I year 1-2 years 2·3 years More than 3 years Total 

(ii)Othcr<; 26.66 21.H2 32.31 601.05 6Hl.H3 

(iii) Disp uted dues- r-.lSME 

(iv) Dis ,utcd due<; - Others 

**There is no unbilled dues as on 31.03.2024 (As on 31.03.2.023- Nil) 

(This spare has been intentionally l4t bl,mk) 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
( All amounts in ? Inc~, tmh!:-s sfntL"d ofh!!n('iSt') 

16. Other financial liabilities 

(Measured at amortised cost) 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Employee related payables 
Security deposits 

17. Other current liabilities 

Payable to statutory authorities 

Advances received from customers and others 

Asal 

31 March 2024 

37.92 
1.26 

88.05 
127.24 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

69.07 
155.10 

224.18 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

219.21 
12.86 
83.90 

315.98 

As at 

31 March 2023 

69.37 
500.99 

570.36 

18. Provisions (current and non-current) Non Current 
As at 

Current 

31 March 2024 

Provision for gratuity 

Provision for leave encashment 

Others provisions: 
Provision for warranty [refer note a] 

Provision for litigations [refer note b] 

(a) The movement for provisions for warranty is as follows:-

Opening balance 
Additions during the yenr 
Reversals during the year 
Closing balance 

2.41 
0.93 

145.87 
149.21 

Asal 

31 March 2023 

1.85 

0.62 

0.52 
145.87 
148.86 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

As at 

0.76 
0.45 

1.21 

31 March 2024 
0.63 

(0.63) 

As at 

31 March 2023 

Asal 

0.56 
0.31 

0.11 

0.98 

31 March 2023 
1.31 
0.11 

(0.79) 
0.63 

As there is no sales during the year, the compJny has not provided provision for warranty. The Provision mnde in the earlier years 

no longer required written back. 

(bl The movement for provisions for litigations is as follows :-

Opening balance 
Additions during the vear 

Reversals during the venr 
Closing balance 

As at 

31 March 2024 

145.87 

145.87 

As at 
31 March 2023 

145.87 

145.87 

Provisions for litigations relate to the estimated outflow in respect of possible liabilities expeded to arise in future in connection with 

ongoing litigations relating to indirect taxes. Due to nature of such litigations, it is not possible to estimate the timing/uncertainties 

relating to further outAows as well as expense relating to such estimates. 

19 (a). Tax expense 

Deferred tax: 
Relating to origination and rever&1I of temporary differences 

Total deferred tax benefit 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

(4.49) 
(4.49) 

As at 

31 March 2023 

(4.23) 
(4.23) 

I 
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CIN-U72200TN2000PLC089255 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(All amom1ts in < lacs. linless stated otherwise) 

De !erred tax : 
Particulars 

Deferred tax liability (A): 
Difference between carrying amount and tax base 

of land 

(presented under investment property) 

Deferred tax asset (B) (refer note b): 

Deferred tax liability (A - B) 

Notes: 

As at Charged/(Credited) to Asal 

31 March 2022 Profit and Loss 31 March 2023 

2,297.29 (3.70) 2,293.59 

2.297.29 13.70) 2,293.59 

Charged/(Credited) to 

Profit and Loss 

(4.49) 

(4.49) 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

2,289.10 

2 289.10 

a). The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets ,,nd current tax liabilities and the deferred 

tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied bv the same ti.'lx authority. 

b). The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses in i'lbsence of reasonable certainty and 

avnilabilitv of sufficient future t.1xable profits Ogilinst which such differences ilnd losses will be adjusted. 
The ;imounts of deductible tempornry differences ilnd unused tax losses on whkh no deferred tax nssets are recognised ilrnounted to: 

Deductible lemporaq• differences (net) 
Unabsorbed depreciation 
Unused tax losses 

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 
Gross amount Unreco11.1tized lax effect Gross amount Unrecogn ized tax effect 

1,220.90 
1,108.37 
7,265.95 

279.34 
2:iJ.59 

1,662.45 

1,173.94 
1,984.81 
6,386.17 

268.60 
454.12 

1,461.15 

Unabsorbed depreciation presesnted above does not have expiry time per enacted tax laws in the country. 

The unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets are recognised representing busi 11ess losses (excluding unabsorbed depredation) are .is follows: 

Year of expiry Asal As at 
Financial vear endin!I 31 March 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
2024-25 1,447.39 1,447.39 

2025-26 158.64 158.64 
2026-27 1,727.86 1,727.86 
2027-28 823.06 823.06 
2028-29 806.62 806.62 
2029-30 476.44 476.44 
2030-31 946.16 946.16 
2031-32 879.79 

7,265.95 6,386.17 

(This space has been inte11th111nlly left t,/a11k) 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All 11nwunts in< lacs, unless statl!d otlrr!rwisr) 

20. Revenue from operations 

Sale of products 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

0.07 

0.07 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

78.49 

78.49 

20.a.The followin 0 table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers 
For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Receivables 
Trade Receivables 

Contract Assets 

Contract Liabilities (Advance received from Customers) 
Opening Balance 
Advance received du ring the year 
Revenue receivable at the beginning of the year 
Revenue recognized that was included in the contract liabilitv balance at the beginning of the year 
Closing Balance 

21. Other income 

Other non-operating income 
Interest incon1e: 

On bank deposits 
Others 

Unclaimed balances, provisions and liabilities written back 
Rental income 
Exchange differences (net) 
Short Term Caoital Gain 
Management Service Income 
Net Gain on changes in Financial Asset 

22. Cost of raw materials and components consumed 

Raw materials and components consumed# 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add : Purchases 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 

(This space has been intentionally leJ) blank) 

1,975.02 

1,975.02 

500.99 

(345.88) 

155.11 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

3.41 

2.15 

83.53 
494.25 

0.41 

0.87 
4.20 

1.08 

589.90 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2024 

0.11 

0.11 

1,876.35 

1,876.35 

528.85 

(27.87) 

500.99 

For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

23.72 

6.12 

1.41 

494.25 
2.13 

0.49 

528.12 

For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

0.33 

0.11 

0.22 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amounts in ( lacs, unh'ss stated otherwisr) 

23. Changes in inventories of finished goods and traded goods 

Inventories at the end of the year 

Traded goods 

Finished goods 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 

Traded goods 

Finished goods 

Changes in inventories 

24. Employee benefits expense 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other funds 

Staff welfare 

25. Finance costs 

Interest expense 

Other borrowing costs 

26. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation of tangible assets [(Note 3(a)] 

Amortisation of intangible assets [(Note 3b)] 

Depreciation of investment property (Note 4) 

(This space /ms been intentionally left l•lank) 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

97.13 

9.44 

106.57 

99.86 

24.84 

124.70 
18.13 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2024 

29.34 
1.43 
1.70 

32.48 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

1,360.00 
76.98 

1,436.97 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

77.54 

25.13 

102.67 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2023 

99.86 

24.84 

124.70 

164.42 

131.79 

296.21 
171.51 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2023 

50.47 
1.31 
0.43 

52.21 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2023 

1,123.59 

68.60 

1,192.19 

For the year 

ended 
31 March 2023 

84.90 

25.13 

110.04 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the yea, ended 31st March 2024 
(All 11mowrfs in f facs, unfess stat!!d vtherwis,·) 

27. Other expense 

PO\ver ~ind fuel 

Consumption of stores and spares 
Con~umption of pocking nhltt!rials 

Reprtirs and maintenance: 
Buildings 

Pkmt and machinerv 
Others 

Outwr1rd freight ~md forwarding charges 
Rent 

Impairment Allowance 
Rates and taxes 
ln,5urnnce 

Travelling and com·eyance 
Legal nnd professional fees 
Payment to ..iuditors"" 
Communication ~osts 
Provision for warranties 
Balances written off 

Lo~._ on sale of Fixed Assets 
Miscellanoous expenses 

*Payment to auditors 

As auditor: 
Audit fees 

In other capacity 
Rt"imbursement of expense; 

Total 

28. Exceptional Item 

Particulars 

fmpairment of ln\·estment (refer Note 28.1) 

Note 28.1 

F01 the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

0.50 

0.17 

3.78 

26.39 
0.35 
3.25 

34.49 

3.00 
0.20 

0.91 

1.25 

74.28 

For the year 

ended 
.~1 M;:nc-h 2024. 

3.00 

3.00 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

118.01 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2023 

0.05 
0.10 
0.14 

1.95 
12.41 

125.00 
17.40 
0.64 

HS 
34.21 

3.00 
0.14 

0.11 
2.00 

11 .91 
155 

218.10 

For the year 

ended 
::n M.1rch 202:l 

3.00 

3.00 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2023 

The Company has inv~tments in equity share capital, amounting to INR 118.01.40 lnkhs (31 March 2023: INR 118.01 lakhs) in Forte 

Furniture Products lndk1 Private Limited (FFPL), a group company which is in the business of dbtribution .1nd ret,1iling of Furniture 

and relnted items. The Company has assessed the current fin,1ncials ns well JS future projections of FFPL and basis the review, ,m 

impairment loss on investmt?nts amounting to INR 118.01 lakhs (31 March 2023: lNR :'\iii lakhs) h~ls been recognized in the financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2024. The same h<1s been disclosed ,lS exceptional item above. 

29. Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS) 

B.:isic and diluted EPS .:,mounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the yei.lr <.1ttribL1table to equity holders of the Company by the 

weighted c1verage number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

The following reflects the income and share data u~ed in the basic <.rnd dilt1ted EPS computations: 

Loss before tax 
Weighted average number of equitv shares used for computing EPS (basic & diluted) 
Loss per share (basic and diluted)(~) 

Face value per shart? (f) 

For the year 

ended 

31 March 2024 

(1,188.19) 

7,00,99,470 
(1.70) 

10 

for the yea, 

ended 

31 March 2023 

(1,133.94) 

7,00,99,470 
(1.62) 

10 
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30. Contingent liabilities 

Particulars 

Tax demands in excess of provisions: 
Value added tax !net of provision t145.87 lacs (31 March 2023: tl-15.87 lacs)I 

Service tax and excise duty 

Labour disputes 
Goods £1nd Service Tax 
Ware House rent 
Coruornte Gnarantee Given 
Total 

As at Asat 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

314.23 335.12 

9.64 9.64 

2.01 2.01 
18.92 18.92 
17.01 11.91 

. 100.00 

361.81 477.60 

Future cash outflows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements /decisions pending with various forums/authorities. It is not 

practicuble for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flows, if any, in resped of the above pending resolution of the respective Proceedings. 

The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities. The Company is of the opinion that above demands are 

not sustainable and expects to succeai in its appeals. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a materfol 

adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations. 

31. Lease commitments 

(A) Operating leases • lessee 

Certain office premises are held on operating lease. The lease term is ranging upto 3 years and are further renewable by mutual consent on mutually 

agreed terms. There is no escalation clause in the lease agreements. There are no restrictions imposed by lease agreements. There ;.ue no subleases. The 

lf>il"-P"- ,1rp C'.lncPlbhlP. 

Particulars As at Asal 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Lease payments made for the year 3.78 12.41 

3.78 12.41 

Note: 
The Company does not have any financial leases. 

(B) Operating leases • lessor 

The Company has leased out its land and factory building along with plant and machinery under the opertaing lease. The lease term is range from 1-5 

years are further renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. There is no escalation clause in the lease agreements. There are no restrictions 

imposed by lease agreements. There are no subleases. The leases are non-cancellable. 

Rental income recognised during the year amounts to N94.25 lacs (31 March 2023: H94.25 lacs). 

Particulars 

Receivable within 1 year 

Receivable between 1-5 years 
Receivable after 5 vears 

Asal 

31 March 2024 
494.25 

1,482.76 

Asa! 

31 March 2023 
494.25 

1,977.01 

) 
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amuimts i11 :t' lat·!-, 11111,:ss slati-d othawi:.-..•) 

32. Related party transactions and disclosures 

a) The list of related oarties as identified b" the mana1t.ement are as under 
Hold in :i.:- com1,clnV Zu<.1 ri Industries Limi ted (ZIL) 
Related parties with whom transactions have taken place du.ring the year: 

Companies under common con trol Zuari Infra .Vlidd le East Limi ted (ZIMEL) 

Ztrnri lnfraworld 1ndia Limi ted (Zl!L) 

Zu,iri In fra world 5/M Properties LLC (ZISJMP) 

Forte Furniture Products lndid Private Lim ited {FFPL1 
Fellow subsidiil ries Simon In dia Limited (SfL) 

Zuari International Limited (ZlTL) 
Zuari Mi.i nagement Services Limi ted (ZMSL) 

Zuari Finserv Lim ited tZFU 
Associa tes of hold ing com pan v Parn deeD Phosph,ltes Limited (PPL) 

Zuari Fa rm hub Lim ited (ZFH L) 
Texmaco Rail & Enj?ineers Lld(TRE L) 
~fa m•a1ore Chemicals and Ferti lisers Ltd MCFL, 

Kev .\lam1gement Personnel: Mr. Bhask~u Chfl tteriee, Director 
Mr '.\l ishant Dalal, Director 
:\<1r.A lok Banerjee, Director 
Mr Sved Moha mmad Farooqut! Shaha b, Director 
Mr San deep Kumar, Chief Fin;.mcial Officer 
Ms Heeri ka Shukla (Company Secreta ry) 

Mr N Krishnan. M,.ma11er 

b) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:-

S.No Description Ho1ding company Associate of holding Company under Key Management 

com t"!an \1 common control Personnel 
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31•Mar-23 31•Mar•24 31-Mar-23 

1 ZIL 
- Sa le of i;;oods 
- Interest Expense 425.iS 319.60 

- lntercorpora te deposi ts recei ved 981.00 1,452.74 

- lntercorporate deposits repa id 510.88 1,077.38 

- Expenses 0.79 . 

2 ZFHL 
• Sale of ~oods :23.62 

;1 FFPL 
- Management fees rece ived 4.20 0.49 . 
- Lease rental 494.25 494.25 

- Expenses 3.91 69.64 

- Investment in Equ ity shares 12.09 

4 ZITL 
- [ntercorporn te deposi ts received 995.40 278.64 

- ln te rcorporn te deposi ts repaid . 979.72 

- Interes t Expense 372.71 332.90 . 
5 SIL 

Expenses l.20 

Amit Shukla
Highlight
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(All '1mounts inf lacs unless stated otherwise) ., 

S.No Description Holding company Associate of holding Company under Key Management 
·--· ___ ,, ---- __ , ,., ,_ ,I 

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 3,l-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 

6 ZIil - . 
- Corproah~ Guarantee given 10,000.00 

-Corproate Cuanmh .. >e released 10,000.00 

7 ZISJMP 
- Advcmce given -
- Expenses Reimbursement paid 

8 ZFL 
- Expenses Reimbursement paid 0.14 0.15 

9 Remuneration Paid 

.Mr Sandeep Kum cir - 18.00 10.88 

Mr N Krishnan 12.02 10.45 

c) Balance al the year ended 31.03.2024 

S.1'.o Description Holding company Associates of holding Company under Key Management 
,A- an "' ,... ......... on l'un•---1 PPrc;.1 nnPl 

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 

I ZIL' (3,170.62) (2,699.70) - -
2 ZFHL (15:UO) (155.10) 

3 FFPL 1,854.92 1,410.14 

4 ZITL (3,854.32) (2,858.92) -
5 SIL -
b Zill 10,000.00 
7 ZISJ~IP 29.71 29.28 

8 ZFL - - (0.01) (0.01) 

9 \1r Sandeep Kumar -
10 Mr !\! Krishnan 

,,. The Compcmr has recei ved financia l support from its hold ing company i.e. Zuuri Industries Limited, that the holding company will provide financial 

support to the Company whenever required to ful fi ll all its obligations for ensuring continuity of its operations. 

(TI1is ~p,ia hus bec:11 i11h'11tioJ1allv fc(l bl1mk) 
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(All amounts inf lacs, uulcss stated otherwise) 

33 Employee benefits 
Employee benefit obligations 

Contribution to provident fund 

Gratuity 
Compensated absences 
Total employee benefit obligations 

(a) Balance sheet amounts - Gratuity 

Current 
1.43 
0.76 
0.45 
2.64 

31 Mar 2024 

Non-current Total 

1.43 
2.41 3.17 
0.93 1.38 
3.34 5.98 

31 Mar2023 

Current Non-current 
1.31 
0.56 1.85 
0.31 0.62 
2.17 2.47 

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows: 

Particulars 

Opening Defined Obligation 

Current service cost 

Past service cost 

Interest expense/(income) 

Liabilities written back in respect of employees transferred to group company 
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 

Rcmeasurcml'nts 
(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic assumptions 
(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assumptions 
Experience (Gains/Loss) 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 

Benefit payments 
Closing Defined Obligation 

The net liability disclosed above relates to unfunded plans are as follows: 

Particulars 

Present value of funded obligations 

Unfunded Provision 

(b) Assumptions: 

1. Economic assum tions 

Particulars 

Discount rate 
Salary growth rate 

31 Mar 2024 

Asal 

2.40 

0.39 

0.18 

0.57 

(0.07) 
0.07 

0.21 
0.20 

3.17 

31 March 2024 

3.17 

(3.17) 

As at 

31 March 2024 

7.20% 
5.00% 

Total 
1.31 
2.40 
0.93 
4.63 

31 March 2023 

Asat 

1.84 

0.31 

0.13 

0.45 

(0.04) 

0.16 
0.12 

2.40 

31 March 2023 

2.40 

(2.40) 

Asal 

31 March 2023 

7.45% 
5.00% 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. 

The salary escalation rate is based on estimates of salary increases, which takes into account inflation, promotion and other relevant factors. 

2. Demographic assumptions: 

Particulars 

Retirement age 

Withdrawal rate, based on a~e 

U pto 30 yea rs 
From 31 to 44 yea rs 
Above 44 yea rs 

Mortality rate 

Asat 

31 March 2024 

60 

O"' ,o 

0% 

0% 
100%of!ALM 

2012-14 

Asat 

31 March 2023 

60 

3% 

100% of!ALM 

2012-14 

[> 
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(c) Sensitivity analysis 

Reasonabl y possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the 

defined benefit obligation bv the amounts shown below. 
Impact on defined benefit oblil\alion 

Particulars Chi!lli.:-e i~n assumption Increase in assum.r tion Decrease in assumption 

Asal Asal As al As at Asal Asal 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Discount rate 
Salary growth rate 

- / +0.5% 

- / +0.5% 

- / +0.5% 

-/+0.5% 
(0.14) 
0.16 

Sensiti vities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated. 

(0.09) 
0.10 

0.15 
(0.15) 

0.09 

(0.09) 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of 

the assumptions shown. 

(d) Risk exposure 

Particulars 

Weighted average dura tion (based on discounted cashflows) 

(e) Risk exposure 

Asal 

31 March 2024 
10 Years 

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below: 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

8 Years 

Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in 

future.Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation 

will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty. 

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts.This may arise due to non availabilty of enough cash/cash 

equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time. 

Interest rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the riskoff all in interest rates.A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing 

the above benefit and willth us result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements). 

Oemographk Risk: The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability.The Company is exposed to the risk of actua l 

experience turnjng out to be worse compared to the assumption. 

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefitis paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Acl,1972 (as amended from time to time).There is a risk 

of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g.lncrease in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000). 

Detailed information to the extent provided by the actuary in the actuarial certificate has been included in the disclosure ~iven above. 

(This space has l1ei:11 intrntionally left blank) 
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34. Fair value measurements 
Financial instruments by category 

Financial assets 
Investment in unquoted equity shares 
Investment in Mutual Fund 
Loans 
- Inter corpornte deposits 

-Security deposits 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Margin money deposits 
Fixed deposits 
Other receivables 

Total 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 

Trade payables 
Employee related payables 
Other payables 
Total 

FVPL 

38.26 

38.26 

31 Mar 2024 
FVOCI Amortised 

cost 

600.00 

1,975.02 

57.82 

28.70 

16.12 

60.14 

2,737.81 

12,641.05 

499.36 

1.26 

125.98 

13,267.65 

FVPL 

23.34 

23.34 

31 Mar 2023 

FVOCI Amortised 

cost 

118.01 

800.00 

1,876.35 

56.01 

27.92 

16.77 

55.33 

2,950.40 

11,148.59 

681.83 

12.86 

303.12 
12,146.40 

(i) The management assessed that carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities, t:arried at amortised cost, are approximately e<.]ual to their fair values 

at respective balance sheet dates and do not significantly vriry from the respective nmounts in the balance sheets. 

(This s11ace has been i11tenlionally lej) /1/ank) 
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's principal finandal litibilities, comprise loans nnd borrowings, lrade and other pay~1bles, security deposits, employee li;;ibilities. The m..1in purpose of these 

finanda! liabilities is to finance the Comp,my's oper,,tions and to provide guarantees to support its open1tions. The Company's principal financial <.1ssets include loans, 

trade c1nd other receiv;;:ibles, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from i ts oper.itions. 

The Comp,rny is exposed to interest risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the mcindgement of these risks. The Company's 

senior management is supported by d Fin,rnce teum that advises on financic1I risks .1nd the .ippropriate financial risk governance framework for th~ Comp,rny. The 

fin,mc:e team provides ~,ssurnnce to the Company's senior management that the Compnny's fimrncial risk ;:ictivities are governei..i by <1ppropriate policies and procedures 

and that financial risks are identified, measured .md man,:iged in accordance with the Company's policies ,rnd risk objectives. It is the Comp;.rny's policy thc1t no trnding 

in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertdken. The Board of Directors reviews and ,,grees policies tor m,rnaging each of these rtsks, which are summclfised 

below. 

Interest rate risk 
Applicability• Financial liabilities 

The compcmy has various term loans (short term ,md long term) from financial institutions, inter corporate deposits. 

Interest r,.1te risk is the risk that the foir \',1lue or future c,1sh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because Of ch,mges in market interest rates. The Company's 

exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates prim,uily to the Company' s long-term debt obligr.1tions with floating interest rates. 

The Company h;;1s taken floating rate borrowing, hence the interest rate ri sk is to be considered. The Company has used movement in bank rates by Reserve Bank of India 

for making a sensitivity analysis for interest rtlte risk. 

Increase Effect on profit or 

/decrease in loss before tax ( 

basis points Rs.! 

31 March 2024 
[NR +oO (24.97) 

INR -50 24.97 

31 March 2023 
[NR +50 (19.00) 
[NR -50 19.00 

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rnte sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable m<.1rket environment, showing ;i signith.:antly higher 

volatility than in prior years. 

Foreign cunency risk 
Applicability 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange r,.1tes. The Company's 

exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange r(ltes rel.ites primarily to the Company's operating aL-tivities (when revenue or expense is denominated in J foreign 

currenl.'.y). 

The company management constantly keeps a track of the foreign currency movement and takes advise from the corporate treasury for hedging the foreign exchange 

rates. As the volume of transactions ,md outstanding position at a given point of time is very low and the risk due to foreign exchange fluctuation would not be material, 
thP m:in-1uPmPr"II d,:,ddPrl n/"'lt tn hPOoP th,:,, fnrPion ,·11rrPnrv P"10n<;11TP 

Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following ti.lbles demonstrate the sensitivity to .:i re,,sonably possible chf!nge in AED exch;inge rates, with all other variables held constant, the impact on the 

Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary liabilities induding non-designated foreign currenc.v derivatives and embedded derivatives. 

31 March 2024 

31 March 2023 

Pavables Receivables 
Change in AED Effect on profit Effect on pre- Change in AED Effect on profit Effect on pre-tax 

rate 

+5% 

or loss before tax tax eauitv 

331 
(3.31) 

3.02 
(3.02) 

rate 

+5'Yo 
-5"{, 

or loss before tax 

(1.89) 

1.89 

(1.72) 

1.72 

eauitv 
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Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterpMty will not meet its obl igati ons under a fin~rndal instrument or customer contract, lec1ding to c1 fin,mcial loss. The Company is 

exposed to credit risk from its operating c1..:tivities (primarily trade receivables) c1nd from its financing activities, including deposits with banks dnd fin<1nci..-1I institutions, 

foreign exch,:inge trnnsactions and other financial instruments. 

Applicability 

Tmde n•c1•i'l.1ah/es 
ln tt-r Corporatl' Dcposits 
Deposits u•ith Ba,1b 
Sf'curit11 dl'posits gi1.im 

Lomzs to 1·mplo11ees 

Trade receivables 
Customer credit ri sk is rnanaged by monitoring individw.11 category customers subject to the Company's ~t,1blished policy, procedures and control relating to customer 

credi t risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Based on the ageing of receivables, the Company assesses the recoverabilty of the 

a mount from each customer 
An impairment ana lysis is performed at e1.1ch reporting date on an individual basis for all clients. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The 

Company does not hold collaternl as security. The Comp,rn_v evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers Me located in 

severa l iurisdidions and industries and operate in largelv independent markets. 
The c1geing analysis of trade receivt1bles as of the reporting date is as follows: 

Particulars Either past due Neither past Past due but not impaired Total 

or impaired due nor Less than 1 year More than 1 year 
imr aired 

Trade Receivables as of 31 March 20:!4 1,209.34 542.26 1,312.64 3,064.26 

Trade Receivables as of 31 March 2023 1,209.57 538.32 1,217.70 2,965.59 

Financial instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's finance department in accordance with the Company's policy. fnvestments 

of surplus funds are made in fixed deposits with banks only. Counterparty credi t limits Me reviewed by th~ Company's Boc.1rd of Directors on ,in ilnnual basis. The limits 

are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate flnan..:ial loss through LOunterparty's potentic1I fai !ure to make payments. 

Liquidity risk 
The Company monitors its risk of a short,1ge of funds using a liquidity planning tool . 

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using future cash flow projections. The Company manages its liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash 

flows from customers and by maintaining adequate C'1Sh and cash equivalents. The Company's objective is to maintain a balan,e between continuity of funding and 

flexibility through shareholder funds or borrowings from the holding company or sister concerns. Considering the stability of the company's holding comp<my, liquidity 

risk of the Company is considered to be low. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

Particulars On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years 

months 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

Borrowings 4,994.89 7,02414 

Trnde payables 499.36 

Other finilncial liabilities 127.24 

626.60 4,994.89 7,024.14 

Year ended 

31 March 2023 

Borrowings 400.00 10,196.70 

Trade payables 681.83 
Other financia l liabi lities 315.98 

997.81 400.00 10,198.70 

The Company has access to following financing facilities which were undrawn as at the end of reporting periods mentioned: 

Undrawn financing facility 

Secured working capital facilities 

Amount used 
Amount unused 
Total 

Unsecured working capital facilities 

Amoun t used 

Amount unused 
Total 

> 5 years 

31 March 2024 

7,024.14 

7,024.14 

Total 

12,019.04 
~99.36 

127.24 

12,645.64 

10,598.70 
681 .83 

315.98 
11,596.51 

31 March 2023 

5,958.62 

5,958.62 

I 
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36. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amounts not offset 

31 March 2024 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 

Trade receivable 

31 March 2023 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade receivable 

Gross amounts 

12,641.05 
1,975.02 

10,748.59 
1,876.35 

Gross amounts Net amounts Amounts subject Financial 
set off in the presented in the to master netting instrument 
balance sheet balance sheet arrangements collateral 

12,641.05 2,737.81 

10,748.59 2,832.38 

37. Disclosure required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 

Particulars of interest bearing inter-comµanv deposits >,tiven: 

Name of the party Opening balance Additions Repayments Impairment Outstanding 

Allowance balance 

Straight Curve Ideas Pri vate 
925.00 200.00 125.00 600.00 

Limited 
-

(TI,is ,pace has been i11/~11tionally left blank) 

Net amount 

9,903.25 

7,916.21 

Purpose 

General Business 

Purpose 

__) 
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38 Capital management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium ~md .ill other equity reserves attribu tL1ble to the equity 

holders of the Company. The primary objecti,·e of the Company's cnpita! man,,gement is to m<.1.ximise the sharehold~r value. 

The Company's objectin!s for managing capita ! comprise safegtrnrding the business as a going concern, cre;.1ting value for stakeholders Llnd supporting the de,·elopment 

of the Company. In particulm, the Company seeks to maintain ,1n Jdequate capitalizJtion that enables it to ~,chieve a sath•factory return for shareholders and ensure 

acc~s to extern.ti ~urct>s of financing, in part by maintaining an adequate rating. In this context, the Comp,my mdn~,ges its capital structure and ,1djusts th<1t strrn:ture 

when changes in economic conditions so require. 

In order to achie\·e this overall objedive, the Company's capital management, ~,mongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financinl coven,mts <ltt<.1ched to the 

inter~t·bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the tin,1nci,1I covemmts would permit the bank to immediiately c;;1l/ 

loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-beriring loans and borrowing in the current period. 

No changes were made in the obj~tives, policies or processes for man,,ging ccipit.il during the yems ended 31 March 2024 ..ind 31 March 2023 

The mc1nagement ,onstantly monitors and rede\'l.'S the debt to equity ratio. As part of this review, the man,1gement considers the cost of capitc.,1 ,,nd risks associated ,vith 

each dass of capital requirements and mc.1intenance of adequate liquidity buffer. 

The position on reporting dat~ is summ.irized in the following table: 

Particulars 

Long term borrowings (including financial liability pout of non cumulative redeem.ible 

preference shares) 
Current maturit ies of long-term borrowings 

Short-term borrowings 

Les~ Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Debi (a) 

Total Equity (b) 

Capital gearing ratio (alb) 

39 Operating Segments 

Asat 

31 March 2024 

7,646.16 

4,994.89 

(57.82) 

12,583.23 

(509.51) 

•24.70 

Asal 
31 March 2023 

10,748.59 

40000 
(56.01) 

11,092.58 

678.89 

16.34 

In the opinion of the managemen t, there is only one reporting i..egment "Manufacturing and gale of Furniture" as env i:;aged by Ind As 108 ··opernting Segments". The 

Company is operating only in India and then:! is no other significant geographical segment. 

40 The Company ho.1d pli1ced on 1 January 2009, inter corpornte deposit (ICD) amounting to ~1,000 lakhs to Straight Cun·e Ideas Private Limited ("SCIPL") for a period of 3 

months. The deposit carried interest rate of 15% p.a. and out of the total interest accrued from the inception of the [CD to 31 March 2010 of tl83.28 lnkhs SClPL has made 

payment (including Tax Deducted at Sources) aggregating to ~58.28 lacs. On account of continuing default by SCIPL in respect of principal and interest, the Company has 

suspended ;.1ccruing for further interest with effect from 1 April 2010. Further the Company has initiated legal proceedings for the reco\'ery of the outstanding amount. 

Further during the financi.il year 2022-23 SCIPL came forward with a Settlement proposal offering to settle the dues to Rs 10 Crs. The Company considering \'arious 

options, considered it prudent to accept the offer and in term of such offer the company recei\'ed a sum of Rs 2 Crs during the F.Y 2022-23 and received a sum of Rs 2 

during the F. Y 2023-24. Further the Company is of the view that since personnel guarantee has been provided by one of the director of the SCIPL and pledge of shares of 

SCIPL obtain~ as security, the crystalised and outstanding dues of R.'> 6 Crs as on 31-03-2024 is fully recoverable and no provision has been made in the financial 

st..itements in this regmd . The Company has ho"vever provided for the write of the wai,·er amount of Rs 1.25 Crs during the F. Y 2022-23. The manJgement believes that 

the ultimate outcome of this proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financi,1( position and results of operations. 

41 During the year ended 31 \•larch 2024, the Company has incurred a book loss oft 1,188.40 lm:s (previous yeM: ~1 , 134.06) has resulted in erosion of entire networh of the 

Company as on that date. Further the Companay also incurring il cash loss as on 31 March 2024, the accumulated losses of the Company ~mounted to , 8,344.48 lacs 

(previous year: ~ 7,156.08 lacs). These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue 

as a going concern. The management of the Company is confident to generate .sufficient profits ilnd cash from operations in near future. Fu rther, Zuari Industries Limited 

{the holding comp;my) has contirmed its intent as well as ability to extend continued financial support to the Compciny, as and when needed, so as to enable the 

Company to continue its operations ;;is,, going concern in foreseeable future. 

In view of the same, the management of the Company is hopeful of generating sufficient cash flows in the future to meet the Company's financii1I obligations. Hence, 

these financial statement~ hn\"e been prepared on a going concern basis. 

42 Pursuant to sub-section 3 of section 129 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 6 o( Companie:,. (Accounts) Rules, 2014 <ind Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 

2016 {the "rules") published ,·ide notification number C.S.R. 742(E) dated 27 July 2016, the Company has opted not to pr~pare con.solidat~ financial .statements of the 

Company, its subsidi~uies ;.ind associates for the flnancial year ended 31 March 2024. With respect to th is, the Comprmy has taken necessary steps to ensure compli,mce 

with conditions ::.pecified in the rules for availing exemption as prescribed . 

43 The Company has consistently <1pplied the accounting policies to illl periods presented in these financial .statements. 

) 't 
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44 Additional disclosures: 
(a) Loans and Advances given 

There are no dues from directors or promotors or KMP or the related parties as on 31.03.2024 (As on 31.03.2023- Ni)) 

(b) Compliance with number of layers of companies: 

No layers of companies has been established beyond the limits prescribed under clause 87 of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Como,mies (Rpstriction on number of £.avers\ Rules. 2017. 

(c) Relationship with Struck off Companies: 

Name of struck off Company 
Balance as on Balance as on Relationship with the Struck off 

31/03/2023 31/03/2022 company, if any, to be disclosed 
Pa}•ables 

Amass Industries Private Limited 0.04 0.04 Vendor 

BBL Enterprises Private Limited 46.95 46.95 Customer 

(d) Undisclosed income: 
There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. No su,h income is surrendered or disclosed as income 

during the year in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ended 31 March 2024 ,rnd for the year ended 31 March 2023. 

(e) No bank or Financial institutions has declared the company as "Wilful defaulter·. 

(f) All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the year ended 31st Mar 2024 and Mar 2023. No charges 

or satisfaction are yet to be reigstred with ROC beyond the statutory period 

(g) There is no loan outstanding against security of current Assets as on the date of Balance sheet and hence there is no obligation for 

submission of periodic.ii current Asset statement. 

(h) No scheme of arrangements ha ve been <1pproved by the competent authority in terms of Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(i) Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium shall be provided in respect of: 

Particulars Descri1>tion 
Transactions where on entity has provided any advance, loan, or invested funds to any other person No such transaction has taken place 
(s) or entity/ entities, including foreign entities. during the year 

Transactions where an entity has received any fund from tmy person (s) or entity/ entities, including No such transaction has taken place 

foreign entity. during the year 
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(j)Rario Analysis 

a Current Ratio• Current assets divided b~· Current Liabilities 
Particulars 
Cum.mt Assets 

Current Li.iliilitics 

RJtio 
'.'!,;. ch,m~c fmm t,rcvious Period/ veJr 

The rc1tk1 hJs dc1..·n._•.1sed in FY 2023.-2.t dt1c tu ini:rcJsc in currl~nt LiJbilitii:-s 

b. Debt ef1 Uih ratio== total debt divided b i total shareholder's 's equit\ 
Particulars 
Totul Dl>bt 
Tt)tJ\ ctiuity (cxdt1ding !',hm- nmtn}lling intcrc-sts) 

RJtio 

n,c rJtio hJs decreuscd in FY 2023-24 due to dccrtJilse i.n equity ,rnd incrc-Jsc in Mt 

2,?.04.97 

5,846.87 

0.39 

31-l\!ar-2~ 
12,641 .05 

-509.51 

-24.Sl 
-251% 

31-Mar-23 
2,30UI 

1,%9. 15 

1.17 

31-Mar-23 
11,148.59 

678.89 
16.-1,2 

c. Debt service covera1;;e ratio= earnin,:i; available for debt services divided b, total interest and princis,al repa, men ts 
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 
Pn1fit(loss),1hert..1x"" - 1,188.19 -1,133.94 

Add: Nnn c..1sh (~rdting expenses Jnd finance- n)St 

DcpreciJtion ,md othc-r non c.-ish <tpl!r.Jting expenses 

Finance costs 
E,1mings JVJilublc for dr.'.'bl SCr\'i-..'"C 

lnternst ( JO borrowings 

Princip..1l rcpt1ymcnts 
Tot..1! lntr.'.'rl'st and principal rL'p.1ymcnts 
R,1 tio 

% ch..1ni,:-e from Prc\·ious 1-- •riod/ vcJr 

102.67 110.M 

1A36.97 1,192.19 

351.-1-5 168.29 

1,.136.97 1,192.19 

910.88 .:1,207. 10 

2,347.85 -t,399.29 

0.15 0.04 

291% 

The rJtio h.ls increased in FY 2.023-24 due to incn:-usc in earnings .-i.v.-iilJ~ for debt ,md dcc~JS(' in PrindpJI repayment 

d. Retum on equih· ratio/ rtturn on inv~tment ratio• Net r,rofit after tax divided b~ AveraJ!:e shareholder·s e uih 
Particulars 
Net profit/ (kiss) Jftcr t..1x"" 

A\'er.:ip;e sh.lrcholdcrs's equity 

R.-i.tio 
'¾, chJn~c fmm orcvilius ~ rind/ vcar 

The rJtio hJs incrcJSL-d due to decrease in J\'Cragc sharchi.,ldcr's equity 

e Inventon· turnover ratio== Net sales dl\-·ided b\ avera~e Inventon 
Particulars 
Sc1lc of goods ('.\.'ct SJlcs)"" 

AvcrJ1;(' Inventory 
RJtio 

' .¼, ch.mi-.C fmm 1· rcvious 1~riod/ vc.ir 

The ratio hJs dccrcJSCd in FY 2023-24 due to dc-1..1cJsc in sJles .md Avcrdgc inventory 

f. Trade receivables turnover ratio• Net sales divided bv averaw.e trade receivables 
Particulars 

SJlcof ~oods {Net SJ le!-)"" 
R,.mt.il I ncomc 

Total Income 

Avcrc1gc trc.1d1.? receivables 

RJtio 
% (h,m~c from previous p,.•riud/ Vt.:!Jf 

The ratio hds dt.'Crea5'..>d due to Non rcalisJtion of current _veJr Trade recciv.it.,lcs 

t;. Trade Pal ables turnover ratio-- Net Purchases divided bv avera~ trade Payables 
Particulars 
Net purch.1scs 

AverJgc trJdc PJyablc 

Ra tio 

% chani:e fnim 1~rcvious ~riod! vc.ir 

There 1s ru.)s1gniflcatc prornnnent mJdc during the ycur hence the- rJtto is not applic.ibtc 

31-Mar-24 
-1,188.19 

84.69 

-14.03 
1442'¾, 

31-Mar-24 
0.Q7 

"'5.63 

0.00 
-100% 

31-Mar-24 
O.Oi 

49,US 

~902 

1,925.69 

0.26 
-24-'~. 

31-Mar-24 

590.59 

31-Mar-23 
-1,133.94 

1,245.92 

-0.91 

31-Mar-23 

31-Mar-23 
78.49 

494.25 

572.74 

1,695.18 

0.:14 

31-Mar-23 

733.54 

---
I, 

/ 



h. Net capital turnover ratio::. Net sales divided br workin q, caf! ital 
Partirulars 
SJlc of ~oods ( :\'ct safost 
AverJgc shJ~holdcrs's equity 

R;.itio 
'¾1 ch,mf-lC from Dfl.;"1:ious I 1criod/ veJr 

i Net i,rofi t turnover ratio= Net profit after tax divided b, Net sales 
PJrticul,us 

Net rrnfit/(loss) Jft~r tJx • 

SJle of goods (Net 5.llest 

RJtio 

The r.1t,on hJ~ 1m.:reJsed ,n F.Y 23-24 due to decrease In sc1 /cs and increase In Jn,;;s 

31-~lar-24 
0.07 

84.69 
0.00 
-99% 

31-Mar-24 
- 1,188.19 

0.07 
-17,118.47 

118392% 

j. Return on Capital emplo \ ed • Earnings before interest and taxes (EBITI divided b, Capital Emr,loyed 
PJrticul;;us 31-Mar-24 
Profit/(loss) bi.Jore tJx • -1,192.68 

Add: finJncc costs 1,.J.36.97 
EBIT• 244.29 

T Jngiblc Net worth (tutc.11 Jssds- totJl liJblitit.'S- ln t,m~lble as~ts) 

TotJI debt 

CJpit.il Emp1<1yed 

RJtio 
% chJnJ'.;e from previous p~riod/ veJr 

The ratio h,.1s in(re.iscd in the F.Y 2023-24 du~ to im:reilsc in EBIT. 

Return on Jnvestments(ROI) ~ Profir Before tax/ CapitaJ Emt) loyed 
PJrticulJrs 
Profit/(loss) OCfore tJx _. 

CJpitc.11 Empl{1yed 

R~ttiv 
% ch,m. c from ort!vinus r,criod/ Vl'J r 

The rc1t10 hc1s mncc1st!d m the F.Y 2023-24 due to mcrcJsc m Loss c1nd C.tpitJI employed 

-509.51 

12,641.05 

12,131.54 

0.02 

31-Mar-24 
-1,192.t>S 

12,131.54 
(0.10) 

31-Mar-23 
78.49 

1,245.92 

0.06 

31-Mar-23 
-1,13."\.94 

78.49 

-IHS 

31-Mar-23 
-1,137.6-! 

1,192.19 

54.55 

678.89 

11,HS.59 

11,82748 

0.00 

31-Mar-23 
-1,137.64 

11,827.48 

(0.10) 



Indian Furniture Products Limited 

CIN-U72200TN2000PLC089255 
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amount~ in Indian Rupees Lakh~, ,mies:- otl1t•rwise ~tnted) 

(kl Corporate Social Responsibility: 
Company is not required to allocate the amount towards the CSR hence disclosures are not applicable. 

(I) Transaction with respect to crypto currency or virtual currency: 

Particulars Q,:i,c;;.crintion 
Profit or loss on transa('tions involvini.! Cn t,to currenC\' or Virtual CurrenC\ :\Io transaction durirn,1 the , e.ir 
Amount of currenc, held as at the renortin,.-- date No transai.:tion durin1t the vear 
Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency/ ~o tr.:insaction during the year 

virtual currencv 

45 During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company reclassifi ed/regrouped previous year's numbers i.e. 31 March 2023 wherever 
required. 

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other expl;matory information referred to in our report of even date 

For R S J V & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 02881S 

~~ 
S Venkates war a Rao 
Partner 

Membership No.: 027713 

Place: Chennai 
Date: 2nd May 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Director 

DIN No. 01371033 
Place: Bangalore 

nets Limited 

Director 

DIN No. 08972330 

Place: Gurugram 

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

M No A42570 PAN AMKPK2527L 
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram 




